United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY {

ELEVENTH SESSION
Official Records

FIFTH COMMITTEE, D92nd

\ MEETING
Wednesday, 20 February 1957,

at 11 a.m.

New York

CONTENTS
Page

Agenda item S1:
United Nations salary, allowance and benefits system:
report of the Salary Review Committee (continued)
Consideration of the draft resolutions (continned) ... 341

Agenda item 43:
Budget estimates for the financial year 1957 (continued)
United Nations International School ............... 342

Agenda item 46:

Scale of assessments for the apportionment of the ex-
penses of the United Nations: Report of the Com-
mittee on contributions (concluded)

Draft report of the Fifth Committee to the General
Assembly (i e e et 343

Agenda item 49:
Administrative and budgetary ca-ordination between the
United Nations and the specialized agencies: reports
of the Secretary-General and of the Advisory Com-
mittee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions
(concluded)
Draft report of the Fifth Committee to the General
AsSEmDlY oo e e e 344

Agenda item 45:
Report of the Negotiating Committee for Extra-Bud-
getary Fuuds (concluded)
Draft report of the Fifth Committee to the General
Assembly ... i e e 344

Chairman: Mr. Omar LOUTFI (Egypt).

In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. Calogeropoulos-
Stratis (Grecce), Vice-Chasrman, took the Chair,

AGENDA 1TEM 51

United Nations salary, allowance and henefits sys-
tem: report of the Salary Review Committee
(A/3209, A/3505 and Corr.l, A/C.5/691 and
Add.l to 3, A/C.5/L.445 and Add.1l, A/C.5/
L.446) (continued)

CoNSIDERATION OF THE DRAFT RESOLUTIONS (A/C.5/
L.445 anp Avn.1, A/C.5/L.446) (continued)

1. The SECRETARY-GENERAL! said that he had
given careful consideration to the United States repre-
sentative’s proposal (591st meeting) for a 2 per cent
increase in base salary for Professional staff through-
out the common system. The proposal had certain
advantages: it would go some way towards narrowing
the gap between pensionable remuneration and total
remuneration and a considerable way towards adjusting
base salary to the rise in cost of living which had taken
place in Geneva hetween August 1951 and 1 January

IThe full text of the statement made by the Secretary-General
will be found in document A/C.5/7006.

1956, an adjustment for which provision was made
in the Salary Review Committee’s proposals. On the
other hand a decision to maintain the Salary Review
Committee’s proposal regarding basic salary scales and
to place New York in class 5 for post adjustment pur-
poses would result in larger and justified increase in
the take-home pay of Professional staff at Headquarters
and would more realistically reflect the true costs and
standards of living at Geneva and New York respec-
tively, Furthermore, by reason of the dependency
factor in the post adjustment system, the increase
would be distributed in a2 way that took into account
the higher costs of family life in the New York area.

2. The United States proposal would cost an esti-
mated $250,000 net a year for the United Nations
Secretariat; comparable costs for the specialized agen-
cies would amount to approximately $310,000 net a
year, making a total of $560,000 net. Since the increase
would also apply to the contribution to pensions, the
total cost for the United Nations family would be in
the order of $650,000 net a year. On the other hand,
acceptance of the basic scales proposed by the Salary
Review Committee, combined with a decision to place
New York in class 5 as of 1 January 1957, would cost
an estimated $335,000 net a year, the financial implica-
tions being confined to Headquarters.

3. The United States proposal was constructive and
had the special merit of attempting to find a common
solution to the problem of the base salaries of Profes-
sional staff throughout the United Nations family. His
own proposal, on the other hand, gave special recogni-
tion to the pressing problem of providing adequate and
equitable remuneration for the Professional staff in
New York. In that context, the United States pro-
posal fell considerably short of what he believed to be
justified, Had the United States proposal provided for
a considerably larger increase in base salaries, it would
have dealt with both the general situation and the
situation in New York in particular. The cost, in 1957,
of such a solution would, however, be considerably
greater than that of the United States proposal or of
his own proposal and he recognized the difficulty in
which that would place the Committee.

4, 1In the circumstances, he felt that the Committee
would wish to keep before it his proposal that New
York should be placed in class 5 as of 1 January 1957,

5 Mr. JONES (United States of America) noted
with regret that the Secretary-General maintained his
position in spite of the arguments advanced by the
United States delegation. That was a disappomtment
and he would withdraw his proposal.

6. Mr. ASHA (Syria) was glad to see that the
Secretary-General had not changed his attitude. He
was now more than ever convinced that the only reason-
able solution was to place New York in class 5 and he
was grateful to the United States delegation which,
by withdrawing its proposal, had facilitated a decision

341 A/C.5/SR.592



342 General Assembly—Eleventh Session—Fifth Committee

by the Committee. His delegation hoped that the Secre-
tary-General’s proposal would be approved by a very
large majority.

7. The CHAIRMAN proposed that the vote should
be deferred until the next meeting as previously agreed.

8. Mr. CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) supported the proposal.

9. Mr. POLLOCK (Canada) suggested that, as the
Committee still had a heavy agenda, it should proceed
immediately to a discussion of the Secretary-General’s
proposal and then vote on it, in order to avoid any
loss of time,

10. Mr. ASHA (Syria) pointed out that the vote
had been scheduled for the afternoon meeting and
that sufficient delegations were not present. It would
be unfortunate to put the Secretary-General’s proposal
to the vote in the absence of representatives of several
States. He hoped that the Canadian representative
would not press his suggestion,

11. Mr. POLLOCK (Canada) proposed, as a com-
promise, that the Committee should take up the next
item on its agenda and resume consideration of the
Secretary-General’s proposal at the end of the meeting,
if there was sufficient time,

12. Mr, CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) supported that proposal.

13. Mr. NAIK (Pakistan) requested the Canadian
representative to withdraw his proposal. Only fifty
delegations were present in the Committee and as many
members of the Committee as possible should be there
for a vote on such an important matter.

14, The CHAIRMAN proposed that the Committee
should pass on to the next item on its agenda.

It was so decided.

AGENDA ITEM 43

Budget estimates for the financial year 1957
A/C.5/703, A/C.5/L.451) (continued)*

Untrep Narions INTERNATIONAL Scmoor (A/C.5/
703, A/C.5/L.451)

15. Mr. NATARAJAN (India) said that, although
the Secretary-General had submitted a report in con-
nexion with the budget estimates for 1957 (A/C.5/
703), he had not requested an appropriation for the
United Nations International School. The Indian dele-
gation had joined the delegation of Peru and Uruguay
in presenting a draft resolution (A/C.5/L.451) which
gave the General Assembly an opportunity to reaffirm
its interest in an extremely useful institution. His delega-
tion hoped that Member States would continue to give

practical evidence of their support for the International
School.

16. Mr. PAREJA Y PAZ SOLDAN (Peru) in-
troduced the draft resolution contained in document
A/C.5/L.451, Reviewing the history of the Interna-
tional School, he recalled that the number of national-
lties represented in the student body was now thirty-
five, as compared with twenty-three in the previous
year (A/C.5/703, para. 6). The fact that the Inter-
national School did not require a subsidy from the
United Nations for the year 1957 was very encouraging,
but that did not mean that subsidies to the School

* Resumed from 589th meeting.

should be completely discontinued. Not only was the
School closely linked with the United Nations, but its
financial difficulties were largely due to its connexion
with the Organization, since it was estimated that, over
the last four years, the annual loss directly attributable
to the fact that parents of pupils could be sent on
mission almost without notice had averaged $11,000
(A/C.5/703, para. 11). It would therefore be desirable
for the Secretary-General ‘to include in the budget
estimates for 1958 an appropriation to compensate the
School for the losses it incurred as a result of United
Nations decisions. The present location of the Inter-
national School was not satisfactory, moreovet, as it
was housed in several buildings which had not been
built for the purpose and had no laboratory, assembly
hall, art and craft rooms, gymnasium, dining-room,
library, staff room or administrative offices (A/C.5/
703, para. 12). It was therefore urgently necessary to
consider the construction of a special building for the
International School where, with the addition of new
classes, pupils would be able to obtain a complete
secondary education, Consideration should be given
to the possibility of constructing a building in the
vicinity of Headquarters or on the Headquarters site
with the assistance, if possible, of the various large
foundations which might be interested in such an ex-
periment in international education. Not only would
that render a service to the children of international
officials and of members of delegations, but it would
also assist in promoting an international spirit by bring-
ing children into contact with several different cultures,
The School might give particular attention to the teach-
ing of foreign languages and might even train future
international civil servants. Furthermore, if it were
located close to Headquarters, its premises might be
used occasionally by international teachers’ congresses
ot even by some United Nations bodies,

tarjat for having prepared a report on the International
School despite the volume of work it was at present
required to undertake. The International School
urgently needed adequate premises in a suitable loca-
tion. His delegation did not wish to express any par-
ticular view as regards the site of the premises, since
it was for the Chairman of the School's Board of Trus-
tees and the Secretary-General to make a specific pro-
posal on the matter. The earlier plan for a delegation
building might, however, be taken up again. As the
satisfactory functioning of the International School
was one of the main non-financial factors which might
attract and retain international civil servants, he hoped
that the Committee would approve the draft resolution

(A/C.5/L.451).

18, Mr. CZARKOWSKI (Poland) thought that the
International School was extremely useful, particularly
as its programme was in keeping with the spirit of the
United Nations, making no distinction as to race, sex,
language or religion, and laying the foundations of a
truly international education combining the best from
the different school systems of the world (A/C.5/703,
para, 3). His delegation wished to make it possible
for the School to operate under the best possible ma-
terial conditions and would therefore vote in favour
of the draft resolution.

19. Mr. NAIK (Pakistan) expressed satisfaction at
the development of the United Nations International
School and at the improvement in its financial situation.
He wondered, however, whether it would be advisable



592nd meeting—20 February 1957 343

to erect a building on the Headquarters site. He would
be glad if the Secretary-General could give details of
the suggestions made by the Board of Trustees, because
the construction of a school in the immediate proximity
of the Headquarters building might disturh the work
of United Nations bodies.

20. Mr. JONES (United States of America) said
that he supported the draft resolution as a whole, but
proposed that the word “buildings” in the first opera-

tive paragraph should be replaced by the word “accom-
modations”,

Zl. Mr. Y. W. LIU (China) said that his Govern-
ment had always taken a keen interest in the School
and that many Chinese appreciated the opportunity to
send their children to Chinese classes which were
almost completely free of charge. The School was a true
symbol of international understanding, and it was
encouraging to note that it continued to attract wide
interest in both lay and professional circles. His dele-
gation was also glad to see that its financial position
was steadily improving and was ready to support any
proposal for promoting the School’s development. It
therefore endorsed the draft resolution.

22. Mr. ROBERTSON (Director of Personnel) said
that the Secretary-General had already announced his
intention of studying in detail the suggestion of the
Board of Trustees (A/C.5/703, para. 15) and would
therefore have no difficulty in meeting the request made
in the joint draft resolution (A/C.5/L.451) that he
should present his study to the twelfth session of the
General Assembly. The Secretary-General had not yet
come to any conclusion concerning the location of the
new school building and would take into account the
views which had been expressed on the matter.

23. Almost unavoidably, the School sustained losses
resulting from the fact that parents of children were
transferred or sent on mission assighments at short
notice, but the Secretariat would do what it could to
minimize the incidence of that factor. He could, how-
ever, give no assurance to the Peruvian representative
that an appropriation would be included in the 1958
}mdget estimate to compensate the School for such
osses,

24. He was glad to see that the Chinese delegation
appreciated the fact that it had been possible to hold
Chinese classes. As regards the question raised by
the Pakistan representative, he thought that the Chair-
man of the Board of Trustees was probably in a better
position to supply the information requested.

25. Mr., COHEN (Chairman of the Board of Trustees
of the United Nations International School) said that
after examining a number of possibilities, the Board
had reached the conclusion that the best solution would
be to build a school at the north-western end of the
Headquarters site. Staff members at Headquarters
would thus be able to leave their children at the School
on their way to work. The School would be sufficiently
far from the offices and conference rooms to avoid any
disturbance of the peace and quiet essential to the work
of the Organization. It should be pointed out, in that
connexion, that the buses bring visitors to the United
Nations were already using the entrance on First Ave-
nue, where the School would be built, and that such
traffic had had no adverse effect on United Nations

work.

26. The Board had asked the architects who had de-
signed the Headquarters buildings to submit plans to
the Secretary-General which would bear in mind the
need for the School to harmonize with the existing
buildings. The size of the new building would not be
such as to enable the Board to admit all applicants,
particularly if it was remembered that many parents
were now sending their children to the International
School at Geneva because they could not give their
children a secondary education of international char-
acter in New York., The Board would keep in constant
touch with the architects and with those persons or
institutions which had offered their assistance in open-
ing the main branch of the School in Manhattan. As
long as the International School remained at Parkway
Village, it would be impossible to continue adding a
higher grade to the existing grades each year, as had
been done so far. Yet it was a matter of the greatest
urgency that provision should be made for a full range
of primary and secondary education.

27. The Board hoped that the Inmternational School
would be able to cover the deficits of the years before
1955-56 and noted with satisfaction that the Secre-
tariat would attempt to limit the incidence of the losses
caused to the school through transfers or mission as-
signments of parents,

28, Mr. PAREJA Y PAZ SOLDAN (Peru) thanked
those members who had expressed support for the
draft resolution (A/C.5/L.451)., On behalf of the
sponsors, he accepted the amendment proposed by the
United States representative, Like the Chairman of
the Board of Trustees, he felt that it would be best to
build the school near Headquarters. Apart from the
advantages already mentioned, such a location would
enable the Secretariat and delegations to organize meet-
ings or show films in suitable school rooms, since the
School closed at 3 p.m.

29. In reply to a question by Mr. ASHA (Syria),
Mr. COHEN (Chairman of the Board of Trustees of
the United Nations International School) explained
that no decision had yet been taken concerning common
services (telephone, electricity, water, etc.) ; that point
would, however, be dealt with in the study which the
Secretary-General was to make. So far, the cost of those
services had been exclusively borne by the School.
30. The CHAIRMAN, speaking on behalf of the
members of the Committee, thanked the Chairman of
the Board of Trustees of the United Nations Interna-
tional Schoal for the information he had given,

The draft resolution (A/C.5/L.451), as amended,
was wnantmously adopted.

AGENDA ITEM 46

Scale of assessmenis for the apportionment of the
expenses of the United Nations: report of the
Committee on Contributions (A/C.5/LA30/
Rev.1) (concluded)**

Drarr REPORT OF THE FIirri COMMITTEE TO THE
GeNERAL AssEmBLY (A/C.5/1.430/Rev.1)

. Mr. FORTEZA (Uruguay), Rapporteur, intro-
(3:;111ced the Committee’s< dra%t Ze)port p(le/C.S/LASO/
Rev.1). ’

32. Mr. CHECHETKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics) proposed two amendments to paragraph 48

#* Resumed from 568th meeting,



444 General Assembly-—Eleventh Session—Fifth Committee

of the report. In the first place, a recommendation should
be made that priority should be given to the considera-
tion of the two questions referred to the twelfth session
of the General Assembly. In the second place, the order
of items (a) and () should be reversed.

33. Mr. NATK (Pakistan) said that he had no objec-
tion to reversing the order of items (a) and (b). He
did, however, think that it would be better to leave
it to the Secretariat to prepare the agenda for the
twelith session in such a way that the items concerned
could be taken up early in the session.

34. Mr. FORTEZA (Uruguay) said that he accepted
the amendments proposed by the USSR representative.

35. Mr. OGISO (Japan) proposed that the words
“would be 1.95 per cent”, in paragraph 46, should be
replaced by the words “in the neighbourhood of 1.95
per cent”,

36. Mr. FORTEZA (Uruguay) accepted that amend-

ment.

The draft report (A/C.5/L.430/Rev.1), as omended,
was adopted.

AGENDA ITEM 49

Administrative and budgetary co-ordination be.
tween the United Nations and the specialized
agencies: reports of the Secretary-General and
of the Advisory Committee on Administrative
and Budgetary Questions (A/C.5/L.448) (con.
cluded)* # %

DRAFT REPORT OF THE FIFTH COMMITTEE T0 Tmp
GeNERAL AssEmBLy (A/C.5/1.448)

The draft report (A/C.5/L448) was adopted.

AGENDA ITEM 45

Report of the Negotiating Commitiee for extrs.
budgetary funds (A/C.5/L.449) (concluded Dt

DrarT REPORT OF THE FIFTH COMMITIEE TO THE
GENERAL AssEMBLY (A/C.5/L.449)

~ The draft report (A/C.5/L.449) was adopted.
The meeting rose at 12.30 p.m.

k¥ Resumed from 566th meeting.
t Resumed from 572nd meeting.

Printed in U.S.A.

M—77501—April 1957—2,050





